
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

x 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : 

Plaintiff, : 

v. : 

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD : 
OF TEAMSTERS, et al., : 

Defendant. : 
x 

Pursuant to Paragraph O. of the Rules of Procedures for 

Operation of the Independent Review Board ("IRB") for the 

International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IRB Rules"), Application 

is made by the IRB for ruling by the Honorable David N. Edelstein, 

United States District Judge for the Southern District of New York, 

on the issues heard by the IRB during a hearing on May 14, 1999, 

and thereafter determined, on the charge filed against Leo H. 

Connelly, Jr. ("Connelly"). 

Connelly was charged with knowingly associating with La 

Cosa Nostra member Lenine "Lenny" Strollo. Having considered the 

evidence and post-hearing submission, by the Chief Investigator, 

the IRB found that the charge against Connelly was proved. As a 

penalty, Connelly has been permanently barred from membership in 

the IBT and may not hereafter obtain employment, consulting or 

other work with the IBT or any IBT-affiliated entity. 

Given the IRB's determination, we do not find it 

appropriate to stay the Opinion or the penalty imposed pending 
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review by Your Honor as we found it in the best interest of the IBT 

that Connelly immediately be barred from IBT membership. 

Enclosed with the September 21, 1999, Opinion are the 

following exhibits: 

1) February 16, 1999, IRB Investigative 
Report with exhibits 1-38; 

2) May 14, 1999, Connelly Hearing Transcript 
with IRB's exhibits IRB 1-IRB 8 and 
Supplemental Hearing exhibits 48-56. 

It is respectfully requested that an Order be entered 

affirming the IRB's September 21, 1999, Opinion if Your Honor finds 

it appropriate. 

dr. By: 
Frederick B. Lac< 
Member of the 
Independent Review Board 

Dated: September 21, 1999 
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X 
: OPINION AND DECISION 

IN RE: LEO H. CONNELLY, JR. : OF THE INDEPENDENT 
IBT Local Union 377 : REVIEW BOARD 

x 

I. INTRODUCTION 

On February 16, 1999, the Independent Review Board 

("IRB") issued an Investigative Report to the Acting IBT General 

President concerning allegations of wrongdoing by Local 377 member 

Leo H. Connelly, Jr. ("Connelly"). (Exhibit A) The IRB report 

recommended that he be charged with bringing reproach upon the IBT 

by knowingly associating with La Cosa Nostra ("LCN") member Lenine 

"Lenny" Strollo in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 

Article XIX, Section 7(b) (1), (2) and (9) of the IBT Constitution. 

By letter dated February 22, 1999, the IBT filed the charge and 

referred the charge against Connelly to the IRB for adjudication. 

(IRB Ex. 3)i 

On May 14, 1999, the IRB held a hearing on the charge 

against Connelly in Cleveland, Ohio. Connelly did not appear at 

the hearing, have a representative attend or make any written 

submission to the IRB. We conclude that the evidence at the 

hearing established that Connelly committed the charged offense. 

' "IRB Ex.", for example "IRB-3", refers to the IRB 
Exhibits introduced at the hearing. "Ex." refers to the 
Independent Review Board's Exhibits which accompanied the 
Investigative Report and "Tr." refers to the transcript of the 
hearing before the IRB on May 14, 1999, enclosed herewith as 
Exhibit B. 



II. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

A. Connelly's IBT Membership 

Local records reflected that Connelly became a member of 

Local 377 on April 20, 1981, and remained a member until June 1983 

when he was suspended. The same records also reflected that 

Connelly resumed membership with Local 377 during September 1987 

and took a withdrawal card in February 1988. (Ex. 1) 

On September 11, 1988, Connelly was arrested by the 

Hermitage, Pennsylvania Police Department and charged with 

burglary, possession of criminal instruments, unlawful theft and 

criminal trespassing. (Ex. 5 at 9) On June 6, 1990, Connelly.was 

convicted and sentenced to six to twenty years. (Ex. 5 at 9; Ex. 

18) 

Connelly was paroled on June 26, 1996. (Ex. 18) On 

August 20, 1996, Connelly resumed active membership in Local 377. 

(Ex. 2) The August 1997 edition of the Local 377 newspaper 

Newsline 377 described Connelly as a Local 377 Construction 

Organizer. (Ex. 19) Connelly did not receive any compensation from 

the Local. 

In February 1998, Connelly was arrested for a parole 

violation and remained in custody on the parole violation until 

August 19, 1998. (Ex. 8 at 14-15; Ex. 18)2 April 1993, Connelly 

Connelly had been arrested on December 31, 1997. 
According to parole records, on January 12, 1998, he was found 
not guilty. (Ex. 18) 
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was suspended from the Local. (Ex. 2)^ in September 1998, Connelly 

was reinitiated into Local 377. (Ex. 2) While a member of Local 

377, Connelly worked in the Local's construction division. (Ex. 8 

at 4)< 

B. Lenine Strollo's LCN Membership 

Based upon reliable and credible information regularly 

relied upon by the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), the FBI 

considers Lenine Strollo to be a member of the Pittsburgh LCN 

family. (Ex. 5 at 5) We credit this determination and, on the 

basis, so find. On February 16, 1999, Strollo pled guilty to a 

RICO charge and to filing a false tax return. (Ex. 51 at 3, 9rl0, 

^ Connelly was suspended from the Local shortly after 
members of the Chief Investigator's staff conducted a books and 
records examination at the Local. (Exs. 2 and 21) 

^ According to the FBI, 

Unions that organize employees in labor-
intensive and time-sensitive industries, or 
have collective bargaining agreements with 
numerous small employers are especially 
attractive to organized crime members and 
labor racketeers. Control over a union, 
particularly a union that governs trades 
which must accomplish work for an employer 
within a fixed time frame, such as 
construction, places tremendous power in the 
hands of the controlling individual. 

Labor racketeers can provide union 
membership, official positions, jobs, benefit 
fund coverage, service provider contracts and 
other direct benefits to organized crime 
members and associates and their designees 
through control of the union. 

(Ex. 5 at 3-4) 
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16, 25)' During his March 3, 1999 testimony as a government 

witness in a federal RICO trial, Strollo admitted that he was a 

member of the Pittsburgh LCN. (Ex. 49 at 30-32) Strollo described 

the ceremony in which he was inducted into the Pittsburgh LCN 

Family. (Ex. 49 at 33) 

Based upon reliable and credible information regularly 

relied upon by the FBI, including information from confidential 

informants of the FBI, the FBI considers Michael Genovese 

("Genovese") to be the Boss of the Pittsburgh LCN. (Ex. 5 at 4-5) 

A reliable confidential informant advised the FBI that a member of 

the Pittsburgh LCN told him that in 1987, Genovese inducted Strollo 

and Joseph Naples, Jr. ("Naples") as members into the Pittsburgh 

LCN Family. (Ex. 5 at 5) Strollo acknowledged this during his 

March 1999 trial testimony. (Ex. 49 at 33) 

On May 2, 1990, Strollo entered a guilty plea to 

violating Section 1962(c) of Title 18, United States Code (RICO). 

The investigation which led to his guilty plea established that 

Strollo headed a RICO enterprise, the affairs of which were 

conducted through a pattern of racketeering activity, including the 

operation of a casino, illegal gaming events, illegal numbers 

lotteries, illegal poker machines and the payment of bribes to 

local law enforcement officers to protect the illegal gambling 

^ On December 12, 1997 a Federal Grand Jury for the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio Eastern 
Division handed down an indictment charging Strollo and twenty-
nine other defendants with violations of Title 18, U.S.C. § 1962 
(c)&(d), 1959 & five other sections. (Ex. 5 at 6) 
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activities. Strollo was sentenced to fourteen months imprisonment. 

He was released to a halfway house on July 19, 1991. (Ex. 5 at 5) 

A reliable confidential informant advised the FBI in 

September 1992 that Strollo controlled illegal gambling in the 

Youngstown, Ohio, area. The confidential informant also advised 

the FBI that Strollo used associates to deliver "tribute" from the 

gambling proceeds to Genovese, the head of the Pittsburgh LCN. (Ex. 

5 at 5-6) During his March 1999 trial testimony, Strollo 

acknowledged running illegal gambling operations in the Youngstown 

area. (Ex. 50 at 22-24) 

In a February 2, 1999 decision on the charges against 

Local 377 member Lawrence Garono, the IRB found that Strollo was a 

member of the Pittsburgh LCN. (Ex. 38 at 13) 

C. Connelly's Knowing Association with Lenine Strollo 

Connelly described his relationship with Strollo as 

follows: "I guess you could say he's a friend, you know, but we 

don't socialize. We don't go out." (Ex. 8 at 31) During his 

November 5, 1998 sworn examination, Connelly testified that he 

first met Strollo in 1988 when he lived for approximately one year 

at a hotel Strollo owned. (Ex. 8 at 30) When asked if he knew 

Strollo before he rented the room at the hotel Strollo owned, 

Connelly testified, "No. I didn't know him. I didn't know anything 

about him." (Ex. 8 at 30) In contrast to this testimony, during a 

July 6, 1996 conversation between Strollo and Connelly, Connelly 

told Strollo that he told his parole officer that Strollo was a 

friend of his parents since before Connelly was born. (Ex. 5 at 10; 
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Ex. 9 at 5) 

After Connelly's release from prison on June 26, 1996, 

Connelly was intercepted by court-authorized wire interceptions in 

contact with Strollo on eleven occasions. (Ex. 5 at 9-10) In 

addition, Connelly was intercepted on eight occasions leaving a 

message on the answering machine at Strollo's home. (Ex. 5 at 9-10; 

Ex. 14 (a)-(h)) 

Connelly's close ties to Strollo were demonstrated when, 

two days after Connelly was released from prison, Connelly and 

Strollo made arrangements to meet the next day. (Ex. 5 at 9; Ex. 11 

at 1-2) On July 6, 1996, Connelly called Strollo's residence and 

left a message that he was going to stop at Strollo's home. (Ex. 5 

at 10; Ex. 14(d)) 

Based upon information from a confidential informant as 

well as other evidence, including evidence from court-authorized 

interceptions, the FBI believed that in 1996 Connelly was involved 

in the collection of a debt reportedly owed to LCN member Strollo 

from the family of the late Don Cook. (Ex. 5 at 10) We credit and 

accept this FBI determination. During the July 6, 1996, 

intercepted conversation, Connelly and Strollo spoke about A.C. 

Cook, Don Cook's brother. (Ex. 5 at 10) On July 20, 1996, Connelly 

and Strollo discussed the collection of the debt the estate of Don 

Cook reportedly owed to Strollo. (Ex. 5 at 11-14; Ex. 10 at 7-9) 

During his sworn examination, Connelly testified that 

A.C. Cook approached Connelly and asked Connelly if he could 

arrange a meeting with Strollo. (Ex. 8 at 31-32) According to 
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Connelly, A.C. Cook told Connelly that he wanted to meet with 

Strollo about his brother's estate and asked Connelly to go to 

Strollo's home to relay the message. (Ex. 8 at 31-33) In addition 

to discussing the debt reportedly owed to Strollo, Connelly 

complained to LCN member Strollo about not getting enough work. 

(Ex. 5 at 10-11; Ex. 10 at 1-2) In another intercepted 

conversation between LCN member Strollo and Connelly, on July 25, 

1996, Connelly asked Strollo if he wanted Connelly to pick him up 

to go to a meeting Connelly had arranged. Strollo told Connelly to 

"swing by here". (Ex. 5 at 14; Ex. 13 at 2) 

D. LCN .Associates Garono and Poghen -Assisted Connelly to Get 
Work Through Local 377 

The evidence, including court-authorized intercepted 

conversations, showed that LCN associates Lawrence Garono 

("Garono") and Robert Poghen ("Poghen") intervened with Local 377 

construction chief steward Anthony Antoun ("Antoun") to assist 

Connelly to obtain work in the Local 377 construction industry. 

The FBI considers Garono and Poghen to be LCN associates. (Ex. 5 at 

6, 15) In July 1998, Garono pled guilty to violating 18 U.S.C. 

§1962(c) in connection with supervising gambling operations for LCN 

member Strollo. He is currently awaiting sentencing. (Ex. 52) 

On March 2, 1999, Garono testified at a federal RICO 

trial as a government witness. During this trial, Garono 

acknowledged being part of LCN member Strollo's criminal 

enterprise. (Ex. 48 at 9) For example, Garono testified that he 

acted as a liaison for Strollo, operated bookmaking operations for 
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Strollo and bought police protection for Strollo's illegal 

activities. (Ex. 48 at 9, 11-12, 23)° 

On July 16, 1996, a telephone call was received on 

Garono's cellular phone during which Garono spoke with Poghen. (Ex. 

5 at 14-16; Ex. 16) During the conversation between Garono and 

Poghen, Poghen asked Garono if "Tony" was in the area. (Ex. 16 at 

1) After Poghen asked Garono about "Tony's" whereabouts, the 

following exchange took place: 

Poghen: No my my son, ah looking to Bobby I'm trying 
to see if Tony's got any room to put him to 
work somewhere. 

Garono: Yeah. I'm sure he could work with you. 

Poghen: Now Bobby's telling me. I said you should of 
told me this two weeks ago before I got Leo on 
there. 

Garono: Ah hah. He'll get him on. 

Poghen: I think he put Leo to work somewhere. 

Garono: Yeah he put him on I think he's ah. I don't 
know if he's in Lordstown. I had him put him 
up in Lordstown. 

Poghen: Ah Huh 

According to the FBI, 

Poghen, along with two others, including Sam 
Scaffidi, pled guilty to a 1982 Federal 
indictment charging them with conspiracy and 
illegal firearms possession in connection 
with a failed June 1982 robbery of Long's 
Greenhouse in Youngstown, Ohio. Poghen was 
sentenced to 15 years in prison. Scaffidi, 
who was sentenced to 17 years, died in 
prison, and was considered by the FBI to be a 
close associate to the Pittsburgh LCN Family. 

(Ex. 5 at 15) 
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(Ex. 5 at 14-16; Ex. 16 at 1-2) It appears from this conversation 

that LCN associates Garono and Poghen were involved in having 

Antoun obtain work for Connelly through Local 371. 

Four days after this intercepted conversation, on July 

20, 1996, a conversation was intercepted at Strollo's residence 

between Strollo, Connelly and Garono. (Ex. 5 at 16-17; Ex. 10) 

During a portion of this conversation, Connelly's work was 

discussed. It appears that Connelly referred to Antoun when he 

told Garono and Strollo "he made me the steward up there." (Ex. 5 

at 16-17; Ex. 10 at 16) Another intercepted conversation also 

showed Garono and Poghen's involvement in getting work for Connelly 

through Local 377. In a conversation intercepted on July 31, 1996, 

Garono called Antoun and then put Poghen on the telephone. (Ex. 5 

at 18-19; Ex. 15) During this conversation, Poghen told Antoun 

"thanks for helping Leo out I appreciate it. . .." (Ex. 5 at 18; 

Ex. 15 at 1) Connelly was reinstated into Local 377 on August 20, 

1996. (Ex. 2) 

The intercepted conversations belied Connelly's claim 

during his sworn examination that he obtained work through Local 

377 after a chance meeting with Antoun at a restaurant near 

Connelly's halfway house. (Ex. 8 at 8-9)^ The intercepted 

^ When asked during his November 1998 sworn examination how 
he returned to Local 377 in 1996, Connelly testified, 

I was — there's a restaurant right there in 
Sharon where the halfway house was. It just 
happened to be a coincidence that I had just 
received from the halfway house orders that I 



conversations showed that LCN associates Garono and Poghen 

intervened with Antoun to get work for Connelly through Local 377.3 

III. CONNELLY HAD PROHIBITED CONTACTS WITH A MEMBER OF ORGANIZED 
CRIME 

In the test for knowing association that is violative of 

the Consent Decree, the association with the organized crime member 

must be purposeful and not incidental or fleeting. United States v. 

would be going out, meaning be released, I made 
parole. It was two, three months before that, I 
don't know, and they told me that I would have to 
submit five letters of employment. . . . So I 
submit five letters to contractors and that night 
I went to eat at The Wave and this guy comes in 
that I had seen before, but I never knew him, his 
name is Tony Antoun, he was with his girl, and I 
walked over. I introduced myself. I apologized 
for interrupting his meal and I introduced myself 
and I told him my name is Leo Connelly, years ago 
I was a Teamster member and that I had a 
withdrawal card and was there any work available. 

(Ex. 8 at 8-9) Similarly, Antoun also claimed he and Connelly 
met coincidently at the restaurant stating, 

I first met Leo Connelly at a restaurant. I 
was having dinner with my girl and he asked 
me if I was Tony Antoun. I said "Yes." We 
shook hands. He was in a halfway house. 
That's where I first met Leo Connelly. 

(Ex. 17 at 17) 

^ When asked whether he spoke with Poghen about getting 
work through the Teamsters, Connelly responded, 

You're not listening to me. I told you. 
Tony got me the job. Are you taking this 
down? Nobody else got me a job. Why would 
Bobby Poghen have anything to do with the 
Teamsters? 

(Ex. 8 at 46) 
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IBT [DiGirlamol. 824 F. Supp. 410, 414 (S.D.N.Y. 1993), aff'd, 19 

F.3d 816 (2d cir.) cert, denied, 513 U.S. 873 (1994). In the 

instant case, the hearing evidence showed that Connelly knowingly 

associated with Strollo, a self-admitted member of the Pittsburgh 

LCN. (Ex. 5 at 6; Ex. 49 at 30) 

As discussed above, Strollo's organized crime membership 

was established through his sworn admissions, the FBI's expert 

opinion which we found credible and accept that he is a member of 

the Pittsburgh LCN, his conviction in 1990 for federal gambling 

violations and his 1999 guilty plea to a RICO charge. 

The hearing evidence showed that Connelly had close ties 

to LCN member Strollo. For example, after Connelly was released 

from prison on June 26, 1996, he was intercepted by court-

authorized wire interceptions in contact with Strollo. (Ex. 5 at 9) 

One telephone conversation between Strollo and Connelly took place 

on June 28, 1996, two days after Connelly's release from prison. 

(Ex. 5 at 9; Ex. 11) During this conversation, Connelly and 

Strollo made arrangements to meet. (Ex. 11) During his sworn 

examination Connelly described his relationship with Strollo as 

follows: "I guess you could say he's a friend, you know, but we 

don't socialize. We don't go out." (Ex. 8 at 31) 

During a July 20, 1996, intercepted conversation at 

Strollo's home, Connelly and Strollo discussed the collection of a 

debt the estate of Don Cook reportedly owed to Strollo. During 

this conversation, Connelly described to Strollo arrangements he 

had made for Strollo to attend a meeting regarding this debt. (Ex. 

10 



5 at 11-14; Ex. 10 at 7-9) 

During the July 6, 1996, intercepted conversation at 

Strollo's home, Connelly discussed with LCN member Strollo the 

terms of his parole and described to Strollo his discussion with 

his parole officer about his relationship with Strollo. (Ex. 5 at 

10-11; Ex. 9 at 4-6) 

In addition to Connelly's ties to Strollo, it appears 

that LCN associates Garono and Poghen assisted Connelly to get work 

through Local 377 after his release from prison. (Ex. 5 at 6, 14-

19) Communications the FBI intercepted pursuant to court 

authorization showed that in a July 31, 1996, conversation Garono 

called Antoun and then put Poghen on the telephone. (Ex. 5 at 18-

19; Ex. 15) During this conversation, Poghen thanked Antoun for 

getting work through Local 377 for "Leo". (Ex. 5 at 18; Ex. 15 at 

1) During a July 16, 1996, intercepted conversation between Poghen 

and Garono, LCN associate Garono told Poghen that he had Antoun 

place Connelly in Lordstown, [Ohio]. (Ex. 5 at 15-16; Ex. 16 at 2) 

The hearing evidence established Connelly's knowledge of 

Strollo's organized crime ties. Since approximately 1982, there 

have been news reports in the Youngstown area describing Strollo's 

LCN ties. (Exs. 24-25) Connelly testified that he read in the 

newspaper that Strollo had organized crime ties. (Ex. 8 at 48) ̂  

Connelly's knowledge of Strollo's organized crime ties can also be 

Connelly testified that he could not recall when he first 
read about Strollo's organized crime ties. (Ex. 8 at 48) 
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inferred from his testimony that he first met Strollo in 1988 when 

he rented a room at a hotel Strollo owned. (Ex. 8 at 30) In 

contrast to this testimony, during an intercepted conversation on 

July 6, 1996, Connelly told Strollo that he told his parole officer 

that Strollo was a friend of his parents since before Connelly was 

born. (Ex. 5 at 10; Ex. 9 at 

A further test of knowledge of organized crime ties that 

are violative of the Consent Decree is: 

[i]n the absence of direct evidence of 
knowledge of the organized crime ties of an 
associate . . . such knowledge may be inferred 
from the duration and the quality of the 
association, (citations omitted) 

Investigations Officer v. Senese, et al. Decision of the 

Independent Administrator at 37, aff'd. United States v. IBT, 745 

F. Supp. 908 (S.D.N.Y. 1990), aff'd. United States v. IBT, 941 F. 

2d 1292 (2d Cir. 1991), cert, denied, 112 S. Ct. 1161 (1992) Given 

Connelly's close relationship with Strollo as evident from the 

wiretap interceptions, his false testimony regarding how long he 

knew Strollo, as well as the publicity surrounding Strollo's LCN 

ties, Connelly's knowledge of Strollo's organized crime ties can be 

inferred. 

In addition, Connelly did not object when, as he related 
to Strollo, his parole officer referred to Strollo as a "pretty 
high powered friend[s]." (Ex. 5 at 10; Ex. 9 at 5) 
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IV. CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, the hearing evidence 

established just cause for the IRB to find that Leo H. Connelly, 

Jr., brought reproach upon the IBT and knowingly associated with 

LCN member Lenine Strollo in violation of the IBT Constitution. 

Accordingly, Connelly is permanently barred from holding membership 

in or any position with the IBT, or any IBT-affiliated entity, in 

the future. Connelly also may not hereafter obtain employment, 

consulting or other work with the IBT or any IBT-affiliated entity. 

Members of the 
Independent Review Board 

William H. Webster 

DATED: September 21, 1999 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Plaintiffs, 

-v-

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF 
TEAMSTERS, && al.. 

Defendants. 

MEMORANDUM & ORDRn 
66 Civ. 4486 (DME) 

EDELSTEIN. District Judge: 

WHEREAS on February 16, 1999, the Independent Review Board 

("IRB") issued an Investigative Report (the "IRB Report") and 

forwarded it to the General Executive Board of the International 

Brotherhood of Teamsters ("IBT") recommending charges against 

local 377 member Leo H. Connelly, Jr. ("Connelly") for bringing 

reproach upon the IBT by knowingly associating with a member of 

organized crime, in violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 

Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (9) of the IBT 

Constitution; and 

WHEREAS by letter dated February 22, 1999, Tom Sever, Acting 

General President of the IBT, advised the IRB he had adopted and 

filed the recommended charges against Connelly and that the 

charges were referred back to the IRB for adjudication; and 



WHEREAS on March 9, 1999, at the direction of the IRB, John 

J. Cronin, Jr. ("Cronin"), the IRB administrator, notified 

Connelly by UPS overnight letter that a hearing was scheduled for 

April 14, 1999, at 10:00 a.m., at the offices of the IRB, located 

at 444 North Capitol Street, N.W., Suite 528, Washington, D.C., 

and also gave Connelly the opportunity, in the alternative, to 

have the hearing in Cleveland, Ohio, if he were to reply within 

five days stating his preference; and 

WHEREAS on March 11, 1999, Connelly notified the IRB by 

telepnone that he would prefer if the IRB conducted his hearing 

in Cleveland, Ohio; and 

WHEREAS on March 18, 1999, at the direction of the IRB, 

Cronin informed Connelly by UPS overnight letter that a hearing 

was scheduled for May 11, 1999 at 10:03 a.m., at the law offices 

of Jones, Day. Reavis & Pogue, located at Northpoint, 901 

Lakeside Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio; and 

WHEREAS*on April IS, 1999, the IRB gave notice to Connelly, 

via UPS overnight letter, that the hearing was rescheduled for 

May 14, 1999 at the same location; and 

WHEREAS on May 14, 1999, the noticed hearing went forward 

before the IRS and Connelly did not attend, did not submit any 

papers ^n his behalf, and was not represented at the hearing; and 
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WHEREAS the hearing proceeded with testimony taken from 

Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI") Special Agent Ronald E. 

Helmick in which Special Agent Helmick testified that the 

information contained in his declaration was true; and 

WHEREAS Special Agent Helmick's declaration states that the 

FBI considers Lenine Strollo ("Strollo") to be a member of the 

Pittsburgh La Cosa Nostra ("LCN"), and further states that the 

FBI considers Connelly tc have close ties to Strollo, acting as a 

burglar, enforcer, and collector of money for Strollo; and 

WHEREAS by letter dater October S, 1999, this Court offered 

Connelly the opportunity to. submit written objections to 

Application LXX by October 19, 1999 at 5:00 p.m.; and 

WHEREAS Connelly never submitted any objections to 

Application LXX to this Court; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the IRB's September 21, 1999 Opinion 

and Decision and all accompanying exhibits, including Special 

Agent Helmick's declaration, this Court finds that the charge 

against Connelly has been proven by a preponderance of the 

evidence; and 

WHEREAS having reviewed the sanctions imposed by the IRB, 

this Court finds that the sanctions are proportionate to the 

severity of the misconduct of which Connelly was guilty; and , 
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of the IRB should be granted; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT Application LXX of the Independent 

Review Board regarding the charges and sanctions imposed against 

Leo H. Connelly, Jr. is GRANTED. 

SO ORDERED 
DATED: New York, New York 
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